Public Document Pack

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ
www.southlakeland.gov.uk

You are requested to attend a meeting of
the Human Resources Committee
on Tuesday, 20 July 2021, at 3.00 p.m.
in the Assembly Room, Kendal Town Hall, Kendal

Committee Membership
Councillors
Pat Bell
Philip Dixon
Rachael Hogg (Chairman)
Ali Jama
Brian Rendell
Matt Severn
Heather Troughton
Janet Willis (Vice-Chairman)
Shirley-Anne Wilson

Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”.
Note – Due to the ongoing Covid-19 Pandemic, any Members of the public who wish to
attend the meeting, are required to contact committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk , at
least 24 hours before the meeting.
Monday, 12 July 2021
Linda Fisher, Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer)

For all enquiries, please contact:Committee Administrator:
Courtney Langhorne
Telephone:
01539 733333
e-mail:
committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Page Nos.
PART I

1

APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for absence, if any.

2

MINUTES

5 - 10

To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the
meeting of the Committee held on 10 November 2020 (copy attached).

3

MINUTES OF APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE

11 - 12

To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Appeals Sub-Committee held on 2
March 2021 (copy attached) and for the Chairman of that Sub-Committee to
sign, as a correct record.

4

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this
Agenda.
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct,
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s
Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.)
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as
any other registrable or other interests.
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

5

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS
To consider whether the items in Part II of the Agenda should be considered in
the presence of the press and public.

6

ANNUAL SICKNESS ABSENCE REPORT 2020-21

13 - 26

To consider the Annual Sickness Absence Report for the period 1 April 2020 to
31 March 2021.

7

HUMAN RESOURCES POLICY UPDATES
To consider the update of a number of the Council’s Policies:




8

Expenses Policy;
Exceptional Effort/ Merit Payments;
Purchase of Additional Leave; and
Alcohol and Substance Misuse Policy.

WELLBEING SURVEY
To receive a verbal update on the results of the Wellbeing Survey.

PART II

27 - 52

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information)
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number)

9

JOINT CONSULTATIVE PANEL

53 - 56

- Paragraph 4 - Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or
contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour
relations matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and
employees of, or office holders under the authority.
To receive notes of the meeting of the Joint Consultative Panel held on 27
October 2020.

10

HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE

57 - 66

- Paragraph 2 - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.
To receive the minutes of the meetings of the Health, Safety and Wellbeing
Committee held on 1 December 2020 and 2 March 2021.

11

ORGANISATIONAL ESTABLISHMENT UPDATE
- Paragraph 1, 2, 3, 4 - Information relating to any individual.
- Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.
- Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular
person (including the authority holding that information)
- Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter
arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or
office holders under the authority.
To consider the updated Organisational Establishment List.

12

FUTURE CHANGES TO THE ESTABLISHMENT
- Paragraph 1, 3, 5 - Information relating to any individual.
- Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular
person (including the authority holding that information)
- Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be
maintained in legal proceedings.
To receive a verbal update on Future Changes to the Establishment.

67 - 82

This page is intentionally left blank

Item No.2
1
10.11.2020

Human Resources Committee
HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Minutes of the proceedings at a Virtual meeting of the Human Resources Committee held
on Tuesday, 10 November 2020, at 2.00 p.m.
Present
Councillors
Rachael Hogg (Chairman)
Janet Willis (Vice-Chairman)
Pat Bell
Roger Bingham

Philip Dixon
Brian Rendell

Matt Severn

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Dave Khan and Mark Wilson.

Officers
Courage
Aiguobasinmwin
Lawrence Conway
Laura Chapman
Kira King
David Nicholson
Charles Officer
David Sykes

HR/1

Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist
Chief Executive
Case Management Officer
HR Specialist
HR Lead Specialist
HR Specialist
Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENT
Following confirmation that the live stream of the meeting had commenced, the Chairman
referred to the new Government legislation allowing councils to conduct remote meetings
and explained in detail to all taking part, and for the benefit of members of the public, the
procedures for the meeting. She then invited Members of the Committee to introduce
themselves, to advise whether they were taking part by video or audio and to confirm that
they were able to see (where practicable) and hear all Members participating in the
meeting. All Members present, including the Chairman, having indicated that this was the
case, she referred to officers present at the meeting who would introduce themselves
when asked to address the meeting.

HR/2

MINUTES
RESOLVED - That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of
the Human Resources Committee meeting held on 11 February 2020.

HR/3

MINUTES OF APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE
RESOLVED - That the minute of the meeting of the Human Resources Sub-Committee
held on 13 May 2020 be received and the Chairman of the appropriate Sub-Committee be
authorised to sign as correct record.

Page 5

2
10.11.2020

HR/4

Human Resources Committee

EMERGENCY NON-EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
No members of the Human Resources Committee raised any concerns relating to the Non
Emergency Executive Decisions.
RESOLVED - That the Non Emergency Executive decision made by Portfolio Holder and
Officers were received.

HR/5

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
No declarations of interest were raised.

HR/6

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS
RESOLVED - That the items in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the exclusion
of the press and public.

HR/7

HUMAN RESOURCES POLICY REVIEW
The Human Resources Specialist presented the Policy Review report to the Human
Resources Committee and identified a number of updates incorporated into eleven of the
Councils policies.
The updates were part of the policy review schedule and reflected structural management
changes.
No changes had been made to the Acceptable Standard Appearance Policy.
The HR Specialist confirmed that the Access to Personnel Files had been reviewed and
updated in accordance with the Data Protection Regulation Act 2018 which implements
the General Data Protection Regulation.
The Adoption Leave policy incorporated a minor amendment to departmental names
following the structural changes as a result of the Customer Connect Programme.
The Adverse Weather policy had been reviewed and updated to remove all references to
the core times as these no longer existed following the previous changes adopted through
the Working Arrangements and Flexi Time Policy in 2019.
The Career Break Policy had been reviewed and minor changes had been incorporated to
reflect structural changes as a result of the Customer Connect Programme. The HR Lead
Specialist confirmed that the policy had also been updated to reflect that it was no longer
necessary for pension contributions to be paid within the first 30 days of a career break.
The guidelines for the Carry Forward of Annual Leave Policy had been amended to reflect
the structural changes as a result of the Customer Connect Programme.
The Claim for Additional Hours Policy had been reviewed to reflect the changes that had
occurred in the spinal points from SCP 28 to SCP 22.
The Disclosure and Barring Service Policy had additional wording included to provide
clarity the fee payments for new checks and renewals and additional information included
regarding the retention of details.

Page 6

3
10.11.2020

Human Resources Committee

Finally the HR Specialist had reviewed the Disciplinary Policy to amend section 7.0 which
detailed the levels of authority to take disciplinary action incorporating the new structural
changes as a result of the Customer Connect Programme.
The HR Specialist responded to questions raised by members of the Committee providing
clarity around the Acceptable Standard of Appearance at Work Policy. It was confirmed
that the organisation recognised that employees were spending prolonged periods of time
working from home and therefore wanted employees to wear comfortable clothing
however the policy would remain in place to discourage inappropriate clothing.
The HR Specialist assured the Committee that the adoption leave policy followed best
practise and reflected statutory guidelines. It was clarified that the timescales for adoption
leave in comparison to maternity leave were difference however this was in accordance
with government legislation.
RESOLVED - That the amendments to the each of the policies be approved.

HR/8

ANNUAL REPORT ON EMPLOYEE SICKNESS ABSENCE
The Human Resources Specialist presented the Annual Report on Employee Sickness
Absence which covered the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020. The Committee
was informed that the recommendation was that the report be noted and that target of
7.50 days for sickness absence for 2020/21 be approved.
The Human Resources Specialist confirmed that the total number of days lost for the
2019/20 period had increased by 19%. This was attributable to an increase in the number
of long term sickness absence cases. He went on to outline the variety of support
mechanisms available for employees such as the Employee Assistance Programme,
Health Care Cash Plan, Wellbeing at Work Policy and Occupational Health appointments.
It was highlighted that there had been a 51% decrease in ear, nose and mouth related
absences, however there had been an increase in industrial related injuries although it
was felt that this figures had increased due to a heavier emphasis on reporting.
The Human Resources Specialist reported that the Councils average for work related
stress absences was lower than the national average. He also confirmed that there was a
large amount of support for employee who reached sickness absence triggers. Through
the Employee Assistance Programme the Council offered up to 6 free counselling
sessions for employees.
The Committee recognised the impact on employees associated with working from home
and were reassured that the organisation had encouraged techniques for employees to
keep in touch such as virtual organisational wide support sessions.
RESOLVED - That
(1) The Annual Report on Employee Sickness Absence be noted; and
(2) the sickness absence target for 2020/21 of 7.50 days be approved.

HR/9

PUBLIC SECTOR EXIT PAY REFORMS
The Human Resources Operational Lead notified the Committee of the proposed changes
that pose implications on Council employees through the Restriction of Public Sector Exit
Payments Regulations 2020 and Local Government Pension Scheme.

Page 7

4
10.11.2020

Human Resources Committee

He confirmed that the Restriction of Public Sector Exit Payments imposed a £95,000 cap
on exit payments to employees in the public sector that came into force on 4 November
2020.
The Human Resources Operational Lead responded to questions from members and
confirmed that the restriction excluded injury or death at work. The Council had no current
employee cases that would be affected by the restrictions however cases would arise in
the future. The Council had a duty to ensure its legal duties were followed and
communicated the changes ensuring employees were made aware.
The Council had been made aware that governing authorities had challenged the decision
and sought a judicial review.

HR/10

PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED - That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1
of Schedule 12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information)
(Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the paragraphs indicated.

HR/11

JOINT CONSULTATIVE PANEL
- Paragraph 4 - Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders
under the authority.
RESOLVED – That the notes of the meeting of the Joint Consultative Panel held on 11
February 2020 be received.

HR/12

HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE
- Paragraph 2 - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Health, Safety and Wellbeing
Committee held on 23 June 2020 and 15 September 2020 be received.

HR/13

ORGANISATIONAL ESTABLISHMENT UPDATE
-

Paragraph 1, 2 and 3
Information relating to any individual.
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information)

The Human Resources Specialist presented a report which outlined the updated
Organisational Establishment Update and highlighted that the report was designed to give
assurance that the Council was meeting the proposed vision through the Customer
Connect Programme. He also confirmed that the salary budgets were based on a number
of role appointments and would be considered at Cabinet and Council.

Page 8

5
10.11.2020

Human Resources Committee

The Human Resources Specialist responded to questions raised by members and
informed the Committee that the report reflected an increased number of fixed term
editions for services areas who had experienced capacity issues.
RESOLVED - That
(1) the changes as detailed in the report and appendices be noted;
(2) the updated Establishment List at Appendix A to the report be received; and
(3) approval be given for the use of the Establishment List in preparation of the 2021/22 to
2024/25 salary budgets, for the consideration at Full Council and a summary of the
Establishment be included in the budget setting report to enable Council to approve the
overall staffing requirements.

HR/14

COVID AND STAFF WELLBEING
- Paragraph 2 and 3
- Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.
- Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information)
Operational Lead updated the Committee on the measures the Council had put in place to
support the wellbeing of staff particularly during the Coronavirus pandemic.
He outlined that the Council had introduced a Mental Wellbeing at Work Policy, amended
the Special Leave and Flexible Working Polices to provide a better work/ home life
balance, undertaken stress risk assessments as well as encouraged employees to use
the services available through the Employee Assistance Programme.
He highlighted to the Committee the works that had been undertaken to ensure
employees were supported throughout the Coronavirus Pandemic. These support
mechanisms included Personal Resilience Workshops, Staff Surveys and COVID-29 Risk
Assessments.
The Human Resources Operational Lead confirmed that the Council had purchased a
catalogue of E-Learning course which would be rolled out across the Authority.

The meeting ended at 15:30 p.m

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10

Item No.3
3
02.03.2021

Appeals Sub-Committee

Appeals Sub-Committee
Minutes of the proceedings at a virtual meeting of the Appeals Sub-Committee held in the
Conference Room, South Lakeland House, Kendal, some joining the meeting remotely, on
Tuesday, 2 March 2021, at 1.30 p.m.
Present
Councillors
Rachael Hogg

Brian Rendell

Mark Wilson

Officers
Lauren Carradus
David Nicholson
Charles Officer
Sion Thomas

APP/7

Case Management Officer
HR Lead Specialist
HR Specialist
Operational Lead Delivery and Commercial Services

INTRODUCTION
Those attending the virtual hybrid meeting in person and those attending via skype were
welcomed and asked to introduce themselves and to confirm that they were able to see
(where practicable) and hear all those participating in the meeting.

APP/8

ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN
RESOLVED – That Councillor Rachael Hogg be elected Chairman for the meeting.

APP/9

APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP
There had been no apologies for absence and there had been no change in the
membership of the Sub-Committee and, therefore, no reconstitution was necessary.

APP/10

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised.

APP/11

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS
RESOLVED – That the item in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the exclusion
of the press and public.

APP/12

APPEAL - 2020/21 - 001
- Paragraph 1 - Information relating to any individual.
Following introductions, the Chairman advised all present of the correct procedure to be
followed during the appeal hearing.
The appellant was in attendance, and was represented and assisted in presenting his
case by Unison Representatives.

Page 11

4
02.03.2021

Appeals Sub-Committee

The case for the Council was presented by Sion Thomas, Operational Lead Delivery and
Commercial Services who was supported by Charles Officer HR Specialist.
Following presentation of written and oral statements, questions were put to the appellant
and his representative and to the Council representative. The appellant and his
representative and the Council’s representative were also provided an opportunity to raise
questions. The cases for the appellant and the Council were then summed up.
During discussion, the Chairman agreed to an adjournment.
Note – the Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude the
applicant and their representative and the Council’s representatives, in making its
decision, pursuant to schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the
Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the
paragraph indicated:Paragraph 5 – Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could
be maintained in legal proceedings.
The Sub-Committee, together with the Adviser to the Panel, then withdrew to consider the
circumstances put forward.
After reconvening, the Chairman said that the Panel had listened very carefully to the
facts that had been presented, and had reached a unanimous decision. The Chairman
stated that a letter confirming the Panel’s decision would be sent to the appellant within
five working days.
The Chairman of the Panel read out the decision of the Panel as contained in the
following Resolution.
RESOLVED – That
(1)

the original decision by Management be upheld; and

(2)
a letter confirming the Sub-Committee’s decision be sent to the Appellant within
five working days of the Appeal.

The meeting ended at 4.48 p.m.

Page 12

Item No.6
South Lakeland District Council
Human Resources Committee
Tuesday, 20 July 2021

Annual Sickness Absence Report 2020-21
Portfolio:

Cllr Philip Dixon

Report from:

David Sykes - Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources

Report Author:

Charles Officer – HR Specialist

Wards:

N/A

Forward Plan:

N/A

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

This report provides details of employee sickness absence in the Council during the
period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Human Resources Committee:(1)

Notes the report with any actions to be taken moving forward.

(2)

Agrees to the target for sickness absence for 2021/22 of 7.50 days to be
maintained.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

Sickness Absence is measured and reported as “Days lost through sickness per FullTime Equivalent (FTE) employee”, using the calculation conventions of the former
National Performance Indicator BV12. This is a standard format, which allows realistic
comparison with other organisations. It includes sickness absence attributable to
employees who have left employment during the period under review, and fixed term
employees. It does not include sickness absence attributable to casual staff or
Members.

Sickness Absence Targets
3.2

During the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021, the Council had an average full time
equivalent (FTE) of 398. The Council lost 4040.5 working days through sickness
absence, compared to 4572.4 in the previous year (a decrease of 11.6%, 531.9 days).
This is equivalent to 10.15 days per FTE employee per annum. This represents a
decrease of 0.73 days per FTE employee compared to last year (10.88) and an
increase of 2.65 days over the target of 7.5 days per FTE employee agreed by the
Human Resource Committee.

3.3

Of the total number of days lost, 3052.1 days were lost through long-term absence.
(Long term absence is defined as any absence lasting for a period of four working
weeks or more). This is equivalent to 75.5% of all sickness absence for the period

Page 13

under review. In the corresponding period in the previous year 3219.9 days were lost
which was equivalent to 70.5% of all sickness absence.
In 2020/21 there were 60 incidences of long term absence which were supported by
the HR team, compared to 56 incidences last year.
The average duration of a long-term absence was 53.7 days, compared to 57.5 days
in the previous year.
3.4

For each directorate area the Long Term Sickness figures for 2020/21 are as follows:
Directorate Area

3.5

Total Days of Long Total number of Average number
Term Absence lost Staff on long term of days lost per
sickness absence employee on long
term sick

Strategy, Innovation 195.9
and Resources

8

32.7

Customer
Commercial
Services

52

55

and 2856.2

Of the total number of days lost, 988.4 days were lost through short-term absence.
(Short term absence is defined as any absence lasting less than a period of four
working weeks). This is equivalent to 24.5% of all sickness absence for the period
under review. In the corresponding period in the previous year 1352.5 days were lost
which was equivalent to 29.5% of all sickness absence.
In 2020/21 there were 237 incidences of short term sick, compared to 401 incidences
last year.
The average duration of a short-term absence was 4.17 days compared to 3.37 days
in the previous year.

3.6

For each directorate area the Short Term Sickness figures for 2020/21 are as follows:
Directorate Area

Total Days of Total number of Average number
Short
Term Staff on short term of days lost per
Absence lost
sickness absence employee on short
term sick

Strategy, Innovation 54.8
and Resources

20

2.74

Customer
Commercial

217

4.3

and 933.62

Pro-active Measurement and Actions
3.7

The Human Resources Service regularly measures days lost through sickness
absence and monthly reports are sent to Leadership Team. Managers also have
access to run their own team’s absence reports. In addition, managers are supported
in monitoring and reducing levels of absence in their service area. This report provides
an annual overview, outlines progress achieved, and provides information about ongoing work being undertaken to enable the Council to manage sickness absence
effectively.

3.8

The increased level of pro-active support available to employees, for example include:
free confidential counselling, the Employee Assistance Programme, occupational

Page 14

health provision, the Pay Care Health cash plan, the launch of the Mental Wellbeing at
Work Policy, resilience workshops, the launch of Cheerful Tuesday wellbeing
sessions, HR coffee mornings for Team Leaders, wellbeing surveys, targeted
wellbeing team talks and multiple wellbeing updates on Sharepoint.
Categories for Absence
3.9

The reason for absence category is taken from the employee directly or fit note and
consistently entered onto iTrent.

3.10

The top reasons for absence through sickness, by percentage of days lost, are:
1. Stress, depression, anxiety and fatigue (848.6 days, 21%)
2. Musculoskeletal non work related (598.7 days, 14.8%)
An analysis of the days actually lost, by reason for absence, is attached as Appendices
1 and 2.

3.11

Since the previous reporting year the Council has seen the biggest increase in:
1. Headache, migraine, all neurological problems (437%, 72.4 days in 2019/20
compared to 388.7 days in 2020/21)
2. Planned operation (124%, 97.2 days in 2019/20 compared to 217.5 days in 2020/21)

3.12

The biggest reduction since the previous reporting year has been:
1. Eye, ear, nose, throat, mouth inc dental (-69.3%, 86 days in 2019/20 compared to
26.4 days in 2020/21)
2. Sickness, stomach upset, diarrhoea (-65.15%, 99 days in 2019/20 compared to 34.5
days in 2020/21)

3.14

Absence due to non-work related stress/depression has increased since last year. A
total of 741.7 days was reported last year, however this increased to 848.6 days in
2020/21 (14% increase, 106.9 days).

3.15

Absence due to work related stress has decreased since last year. A total of 403.6
days was reported for last year compared to 180.6 days for this year (a decrease of
55%, 223 days).
The Council is continuing to manage stress related absences through the use of the
stress assessment process, which includes:











Active day 1 care through our employee assistance programme. With
agreement from the employee a referral is made on day 1 of the absence. A
qualified counsellor will arrange a call and agree a programme of activity with
the employee. This supports with the identification of Stress incidences on the
first day of absence and appropriate support and prompt measures can be
taken to deal with any issues leading to or causing stress absence.
Resilience training provided by a trained psychologist for all staff.
Occupational Health service which staff can access.
Our Employee Assistance Programme which provides a multitude of
counselling options.
The introduction of our Wellbeing at Work Policy. This provides useful tools to
managers and employees to support with wellbeing activity
Training on the Wellbeing policy for managers
The introduction of management team talks
The introduction of cheerful Tuesdays
The introduction of wellbeing updates and resilience training

Page 15

Pro-Active Management of Sickness Absence
3.16

It is proposed to continue this pro-active management in sickness absence by
continuing to set the challenging target for 2021/22 of 7.50 days per employee per
annum.

3.17

A range of pro-active actions were introduced in the last financial year to help meet the
proposed target and reduce absence further:•

•
•

Revision of all sickness absence reason categories to align with national published
data to assist benchmarking and more detailed absence for manager’s reviews. In
addition to this, more specific reasons have been introduced to capture work and
non-work related musculoskeletal sickness absence.
Provision of seminars on work life balance, priority setting techniques, team
working, well-being events and motivational sessions.
Two categories of stress have now been established to monitor workplace and
personal stress to support employees and take actions that are appropriate and
timely.

Further Actions and Activities
3.18

The following pro-active actions will continue, where appropriate, to assist managers
in the management of sickness absence.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The introduction of a Mental Wellbeing at Work policy to raise awareness of mental
health and to support managers and employees with proactive measures in
supporting each other with mental health conditions.
The introduction of a Smart Working policy that allows all staff to be flexible in their
work life balance.
Providing training to equip managers with the necessary knowledge and skills to
manage sickness absence. The use of policies and procedures such as
“Attendance Management”, “Mental Health at Work” and “Smart Working”.
Advising managers each time employees reach a sickness absence trigger point.
The return to work interview is monitored by Human Resources and managers are
advised where they are overdue.
Absence reviews are conducted in line with the Attendance Management Policy
with full support from Human Resources.
The Council utilises professional Occupational Health advice in managing levels of
absence, particularly long-term absence.
A free confidential Counselling Service is available for all employees.
A free confidential Employee Assistance Programme is available for all employees.
The Council offers the opportunity for employees to join the Pay Care Health Cash
Plan which allows for regular dental, optical check-ups, etc, which should
contribute to reduced levels of sickness absence.

Absence due to COVID
3.19

It is important to mention the impact of COVID on overall absence figures for 2020/21.
As part of the local government terms and conditions if an employee is prevented from
attending work because of contact with infectious disease they shall be entitled to
receive normal pay. The period of absence on this account shall not be reckoned
against the employee’s entitlements under this scheme.

3.20

For the purposes of reporting sickness absence, any absence related to COVID,
either self-isolation or being absent due to contracting COVID has not been
counted toward the overall sickness absence reporting figures.

Page 16

3.21

For information purposes the Council has had a total of 1493 days lost which are
attributable to COVID. Should this figure have been added to the totals above the
overall absence figures would total 5,533.5 days for the period 2020/21. This would
equate to a total of 13.9 days off per FTE.

4.0

Research and Consultation

4.1

All data used in this report relating to South Lakeland District Council has
originated from the Council’s iTrent Human Resources computerised system.

4.2

External benchmarking has also taken place to assess our performance against other
relevant external organisations. The Council’s absence figure for 2020/21 of 10.15
days which is higher than that recorded for the UK Public Sector in a xpertHR Survey
which was recorded at 9.2 days. Appendix 3 of the report, provides the sickness
absence figures between 2004/05 and 2020/21.

4.3

Absence comparison data has been produced by XpertHR nationally and has been
provided below for comparison.
National
Comparative
Data

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

XpertHR National 9.2
report
on
days
Absence- Public
Sector

9.2
days

8.4
days

9.7

9.8
days

9.08
days

8.2
days

9.1
days

XpertHR National 8.7
report
on days
Absence- Private
Sector

6.4
days

4.4
days

5.6
days

6.5
days

7.8
days

6.6
days

8.8
days

10.15 10.88 8.92
days days days

7.31
days

8.99
days

8.54
days

7.4
days

6.5
days

SLDC

days

4.4

The report has been shared with our unions prior to HR committee.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

Not applicable – the report is provided for information.

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

The recognition of a highly skilled and healthy workforce is embedded into the
council plan which shows how essential a motivated workforce is to providing
excellent customer services.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

From the iTrent Human Resources computerised system it is calculated that the cost
of sickness absence for the financial year was £265,626. This figure does not include
on costs or the cost of cover, overtime or flexi-time being worked to cover absences.

7.2

The cost of absence in 2019/20 was £352,226. The decrease in days from last year
(532) has seen a decrease in costs of £86,600 calculated on the same salary basis as
above.

Page 17

Human Resources
7.3

The Council’s Attendance Management Policy provides details of how employees will
be managed during sickness absence. The access to staff of their absence records
over the year will also help them become more aware of their absence from work and
encourage greater Health and Wellbeing awareness.

Legal
7.4

There are no legal implications to this report.

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.5

A sustainability impact assessment has not been carried out. It has no impact on the
climate change.

7.6

This report does not have any registered significant environmental effects.

Equality and Diversity
7.7

There are no trends in the sickness absence analysis figures indicating any
equality or diversity issues.

Risk
Not applicable – the report is provided for information purposes.
Contact Officers
Charles Officer, Senior Human Resources Advisor, 01539 793188
charles.officer@southlakeland.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.
1

Reason for absence by percentage of days lost – 1 April 2020 to
31 March 2021

2

Reason for sickness absence by percentage - 1 April 2020 to 31
March 2021

3

SLDC days lost through sickness absence per full-time
equivalent (FTE) employee per annum - 2004/05 to 2020/21

Background Documents Available
None

Page 18

Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
CMT

Date sent
10/6/21
10/6/21
10/6/21
14/6/21

Circulated to
Lead Specialist
Human Resources Lead Specialist
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
10/6/21
10/6/21
N/A
N/A
28/6/21
28/6/21
N/A
13/7/21
N/A
N/A

Page 19

Date Signed off
17/6/21
17/6/21
17/6/21
17/6/21

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20

Appendix 1

Reason for absence by percentage of days lost 2020/21

Reason
Back, neck problems
Cardiovascular, heart, blood pressure, circulation
Cold, flu,chest, respiratory problems
Disease, cancer/treatment
Eye, ear, nose, throat,mouth inc. dental
Gastro-Intestinal, stomach, liver, kidney, digestive
problems
Gynaecological related problems
Headache, migraine, all neurological problems
Industrial Injury
Infection, virus, allergy
Musculoskeletal Non-work related
Musculoskeletal Work related
Other
Planned operation
Sickness, stomach upset, diarrhoea
Stress, depression, anxiety, fatigue
Stress-work related
Totals

Page 21

LTS
days

STS
days

175
266
32.9
141
0

3
11
89.12
11.5
26.4

0
0
342.8
176.9
10
463.7
384.8
140.1
147.5
0
639.8
162.6
3083.1

63
9.8
45.9
22.1
47.5
135
102.6
64.2
70
34.5
208.8
18
962.42

Total
Days
%
178
277
122.02
152.5
26.4
63
9.8
388.7
199
57.5
598.7
487.4
204.3
217.5
34.5
848.6
180.6
4045.52

4.4
6.8
3.0
3.8
0.7
1.6
0.2
9.6
4.9
1.4
14.8
12.0
5.1
5.4
0.9
21.0
4.5
100.0

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22

Appendix 2

% of days lost
Back, neck problems, 178, 4%

Cardiovascular, heart, blood
pressure, circulation, 277, 7%

Stress-work related, 180.6, 4%
Cold, flu,chest, respiratory
problems, 122.02, 3%
Stress, depression, anxiety, fatigue,
848.6, 21%

Disease, cancer/treatment, 152.5,
4%
Eye, ear, nose, throat,mouth inc.
dental, 26.4, 1%

Page 23

Sickness, stomach upset, diarrhoea,
34.5, 1%

Gastro-Intestinal, stomach, liver,
kidney, digestive problems, 63, 2%

Gynaecological related problems,
9.8, 0%

Planned operation, 217.5, 5%

Headache, migraine, all
neurological problems, 388.7, 10%

Other, 204.3, 5%

Industrial Injury, 199, 5%
Musculoskeletal Work related,
487.4, 12%

Infection, virus, allergy, 57.5, 1%

Musculoskeletal Non-work related,
598.7, 15%

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24

Appendix 3

SLDC days lost per FTE employee 2004/05 - 2020/21

10.88

10.6
9.46

10.28
9.14

8.53

8.32

10.15
8.99

8.95

8.92

8.54

8.44
7.94
7.43

7.31

Page 25

6.5

2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26

Item No.7
South Lakeland District Council
Human Resources Committee
Tuesday, 20 July 2021

HR Policy Updates
Portfolio:

Cllr Philip Dixon

Report from:

Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources

Report Author:

Kira King – HR Specialist

Wards:

Not Applicable

Forward Plan:

Not applicable

1.0

Expected Outcome and Measures of Success

1.1

This report presents an update on a number of the Council’s policies. The policies are
part of a policy review schedule and some changes in these policies also reflect the
structural management changes following the implementation of a new organisation
structure.

1.2

This report also covers the introduction of the Alcohol and Substance Misuse Policy
which is being introduced in order to support the health, safety and wellbeing, of SLDC
employees.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Human Resources Committee
(1)

Considers the updates to the Expenses policy, Exceptional Effort/ Merit
Payments and Purchase of Additional leave Policy, provides any
comments on the policies and recommends approval by the Human
Resources Committee

(2)

Considers the new alcohol and substance misuse policy, provides any
comments on the policy and recommends approval by the Human
Resources Committee

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

The Expenses Policy has had some minor grammatical changes and updated
wording. There have also been changes to the titles and service area names
following the restructure and customer connect changes.

3.2

The Exceptional Effort/ Merit Payments guidelines have had changes in the wording
which refer to role titles or service areas in order to reflect the changes made during
restructure and customer connect changes.
There have also been changes made to the wording in regard to the SCP points that
are mentioned ie we now have 60 SCP points not 66. This is following the changes to
the pay scale that occurred last year and these changes are to update the
information to relate to the current pay scales and other associated policies.

Page 27

3.3

The Purchase of Additional Leave policy has had some minor amendments made to
the wording to reflect the changes in the internal communication process between
employee, line manager and payroll. There have also been changes made to titles
and service areas in order to reflect the changes made during restructure and
customer connect changes.

3.4

The Alcohol and Substance Misuse Policy is a new policy which is being introduced
to support the health, safety and wellbeing of SLDC employees. The policy is
designed to help protect workers from the dangers of alcohol and substance misuse
and encourage those misusing to seek help. The aim of the policy is to provide

employees and managers with information on the effects of alcohol and
drugs/substance misuse and an understanding of the likely symptoms of
misuse and highlight to employees the risks associated with alcohol and
substance misuse. It also aims to encourage employees to seek help at an
early stage and for SLDC to then be able to support employees with any
treatment plans. The policy aims to encourage managers to intervene at an
early stage if there are concerns about an employee’s potential addiction.
4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Expenses Policy

2

Exceptional Effort/ Merit Payments

3

Purchase of Additional Leave

4

Alcohol and Substance Misuse Policy

5.0

Consultation

5.1

The Corporate Management Team has been consulted and Unions will be consulted
at JCP committee before Human Resources Committee

6.0

Alternative Options

6.1

There are no alternatives to the changes referring to the role titles following the
implementation of the new structure and any other changes to current policies are
being updated to reflect the changes in policies and procedures.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.2

There are no financial implications of these changes

Human Resources
7.3

Locally agreed policies and procedures are agreed in full consultation with the
recognised Unions and take place in line with statutory requirements.

Legal
7.4

Locally agreed policies and procedures are agreed in full consultation with the
recognised Unions and take place in line with statutory requirements.

Page 28

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.5

A Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact Assessment has not been
completed

7.6

There are no health, social, economic or environmental impacts from these policy
updates

Equality and Diversity
7.7

An Equality Impact Analysis has not been conducted

7.8

Equality and Diversity runs through all aspects of the Council’s Human Resources
Policies and Procedures and managing this is integral within all our Policies and
Procedures, thus ensuring compliance with legislative requirements. The equality
and diversity of the structural changes has been assessed and agreed through
customer connect programme.

7.9

There are no specific equality and diversity impacts as these are considered and run
through all aspects of the Council’s Human resources policies

Risk Management

Consequence

Controls required

The policy updates and changes
are not agreed

The Council policies will
be out of date and not
reflect the new structure or
the new working
procedures.
And for the legislative
changes this would mean
the Council was in breach
of statutory regulations.

To agree to the updated
policy changes

Alcohol and Substance Misuse
policy introduction

No clear direction to
managers in the
organisation about what
process and procedures to
follow. Risk of not
following correct protocols.

Agree to the introduction
of alcohol and substance
misuse policy

Contact Officers
Kira King, HR Specialist Kira.King@southlakeland.gov.uk
Background Documents Available
None
Tracking Information
Signed off by
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
CMT

Date sent
11/06/21
11/06/21
14/06/2021

Circulated to
Lead Specialist
Human Resources Lead Specialist

Date sent
11/06/21
11/06/21

Page 29

Date Signed off
17/06/2021
17/06/2021
17/06/2021

Circulated to
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
N/A
N/A
13/07/21
13/07/21
N/A
13/07/21
N/A
N/A

Page 30

Appendix 1

Expenses Policy
Version 1.1
Last reviewed
To be reviewed by
Specific changes

Author: J Barker

09.06.2021
July 2014
July 2023
Minor grammatical amendments and
changes to titles and departments
following customer connect changes

Version 0.2

Page 31

Date: May 2014

Appendix 1
EXPENSES POLICY

1.0

INTRODUCTION
The Council will
reimburse employees for all
reasonable and
appropriate expenditure that has
been wholly, exclusively and necessarily incurred for business use, subject to the
financial limits published each year on the intranet.
The approval processes set out in the following procedures should be regarded as the
minimum required. Services are at liberty to require approvals to be obtained at higher
levels of authority. However, it is not permissible to delegate authority to levels lower
than those specified in these procedures.
The financial limits outlined in this Policy apply to claims made via the expenses
system.

2.0

RESPONSIBILITIES
2.1

Employees

All expense claims must be made using the standard forms which are available via
MyHR or the intranet (HR Forms).
Completed forms must be submitted / signed by the claimant, and authorised by the
relevant line Manager. These should then be passed / sent via MyHR to Payroll for
processing and re-imbursement will be made directly into the claimant’s bank account.
Before submitting any expense claim for reimbursement the employee must be aware
of the following responsibilities:
The claimant is responsible for:
 Complying with the Council’s Expenses Policy and Procedure with respect to the
reimbursement of expenses.


Completing the appropriate forms fully.



Providing supporting documentation (including receipts) for all items of
expenditure not related to mileage.



Fully documenting the reason for each expense claim or journey, especially where
public transport is not used, such as in circumstances where the use of public
transport would have been prohibitive ieadditional costs incurred taxi, car parking,
overnight accommodation to get to the event in time for registration etc, restrictive
access or many changes to a destination or where more than one member of
employee would be travelling to the same event in a defined timescale due to
other commitments. Employees should state sites visited or work place. The
purpose of the journey must also be clearly stated.



Obtaining approval for the claim from their Manager especially where second
class rail fare is not used for a journey.

Author: J Barker

Version 0.2

Page 32

Date: May 2014

Appendix 1


Claims made under
made for work
normal working
work can be
small number of
in these
Scale Charge.



Employees will produce a receipt for any claims made and any payments made
will be on the basis of the face value of the receipt, up to the current maximum
allowance specified. All claims must be made within 3 months of incurring the
expense.



When claiming subsistence, the start and finish time of journey must be shown on
the claim.

“special turnouts” i.e. claims are
undertaken outside an employee’s
hours the journey from home to
claimed but will be taxable. For the
Hire Car Users, claiming expenses
circumstances would incur the Fuel

Employees who do not have access to MyHR receipts to each claim including any
supporting documentation must be attached.
2.2

Managers
By approving a claim, Managers are confirming that:


The claim is for legitimate Council expenses.



The expenses policy and procedures as detailed in this policy, have been complied
with.



All appropriate supporting documentation has been provided (including
explanations were required).



Any exceptional requests (such as not claiming second class rail fare due to other
possible costs, inappropriate timescales etc.) are explained and approved if
deemed efficient and cost-effective for the Council.

If approvers are presented with claims that are incomplete in any way or are not in line
with this policy, these should be returned to the claimant.
When authorising a travel claim, the Manager must be satisfied that all parts of the
journey claimed for are business related and that there is no private element to the
travel.
3.

Time Frame for Reimbursement
Expenses claims with accompanying receipts, should be made for a completed
calendar month, authorised by the line manager and received in Payroll no later than
the 5th of the month to guarantee payment within the same month.
The Council and its employees have a mutual interest in expense claims being
submitted, approved and paid promptly. Consequently, expense claims must be
submitted to Payroll no later than three months following the date of return from the trip
expense incurred. Reimbursement will not be made for claims received after the expiry
of the time limit, except in exceptional circumstances.

Author: J Barker

Version 0.2

Page 33

Date: May 2014

Appendix 1
4.

Receipts
Expenses claims (not
receipts will not

mileage) made without supporting
normally be paid.

VAT receipts for
Mileage claims are processed by
the Finance team and
the Council can only claim VAT
back from HMRC if VAT receipts are provided. Receipts for mileage should be handed
into the finance team (on a monthly basis).
5.

Travel Expenses Procedure
Travelling by Car
Employees should share vehicles whenever possible. If employees have not used
public transport for a journey, the reason for this must be documented on the claim
form.
Mileage Claims
All journeys from an employee’s permanent place of work to a temporary location may
be regarded as business journeys and the full distance travelled may be claimed for.
However, if a journey begins or ends at home the employee may claim only the cost of
the lesser of:
 The distance actually travelled


The distance that would have been travelled if the journey had started and
ended at the employee's normal place of work.

Mileage Rates
Mileage for business travel will be paid as per the published data provided annually,
and published on the intranet.
Driver Details
All employees driving on Council business must possess a full, valid driving licence
and business insurance for that vehicle at the time of travel.
Class of Travel
The Council expects employees to use economy class travel when under-taking rail or
any public transport journeys. Wherever possible, journeys should be booked in
advance to take advantage of cheaper rail fares.
Taxi Journeys
The Council would normally expect employees to walk or use alternative public
transport rather than taxis in most circumstances. Short taxi journeys are permitted to
travel to / from the end of a rail or bus journey where there is no public transport and it
is not practical to do the journey on foot.

Hotel Accommodation
For overnight stays Bed and Breakfast / Hotels will be reimbursed at actual cost up to
current maximum allowed published annually. The cost of overnight accommodation
and breakfast should not, normally, exceed these limits.
Payment for Accommodation
Author: J Barker

Version 0.2

Page 34

Date: May 2014

Appendix 1
Wherever possible,
advance via the
should be taken to
may not be available at
arrangements might
not reimburse
costs without
to a claim form.

hotel costs should be booked in
department credit card. Care
confirm with the hotel that the card
check-in and alternative registration
need to be made. The Council will
employees for any hotel or meal
appropriate receipts being attached

Extra Payments
Itemised, receipted bills must be produced and extras like newspapers or early
morning tea will not be paid. In exceptional circumstances the maximum may be
exceeded for Conferences in London, etc., but prior authorisation by the Manager is
required.
Employees should note that items of a personal nature will not be reimbursed by the
Council. Where these items are included in a bill which is settled directly by the
employee, the costs should be deducted by the claimant prior to the submission of the
bill for reimbursement.
Meals
If an employee is away from home on business overnight the costs of meals up to
limits published annually, may be claimed. All expenditure must be supported by
receipts. The Council will not reimburse employee for the purchase of alcoholic
beverages.
Breakfast
Subsistence can only be claimed when called to leave home at least one and a half
hours earlier than normal time or flexi extreme time but not after 7.30.
Lunch
Subsistence can only be claimed when an employee is not engaged in their usual dayto-day duties, and is not in their normal place of work out of the district. The time must
include the period 11.30 to 14.30 when a lunch would normally be taken.
Evening Meal
An evening meal can only be claimed when an employee is not engaged in their usual
day-to-day duties and is not in their normal place of work and not expected to return
home before the end of flexi extreme time.
Car parking
Car parking costs incurred in the course of business travel may be claimed on
production of a receipt via the expenses system. Reimbursement of an individual's car
parking fines is not allowed.
6.

Breach of Policy
Any alleged breaches of this policy will be fully investigated and where a breach of the
policy is identified, disciplinary action may be taken. Any overpayments payments will
be recovered by the Council via payroll in the following month.
The Council will not reimburse employees for business journey claims which include
mileage between home and their permanent place of work. HMRC state that business
journeys are those that:

Author: J Barker

Version 0.2

Page 35

Date: May 2014

Appendix 1


form part of an
(such as
premises); or

employee's employment duties
journeys between Council



relate to an
temporary
service site)

employee's attendance at a
workplace (such as a shared

If claim forms are not properly completed they will be returned unpaid to claimants by
Payroll.
7.

Reasonable Adjustments and other requirements
Reasonable adjustments for an employee with a disability requirement will be taken
into consideration with the implementation of this policy, especially with regard to the
payment of additional taxi or car journey fees to support accessibility.

8.

Review of Policy
This Policy will be reviewed on a regular basis in the light of operating experience
and/or changes in legislation.

Author: J Barker

Version 0.2

Page 36

Date: May 2014

Appendix 2

Exceptional Effort/Merit Payments

Version 1.1
Last reviewed

February 2017

To be reviewed by

June 2023

Specific changes

Structural changes to role titles following
customer connect and minor amendments
to the SCP scale to reflect the up to date
details.

Exc

Page 37

Appendix 2

EXCEPTIONAL EFFORT/MERIT PAYMENTS
Payable when the Council wishes to recognise and reward an employee’s exceptional effort
or merit within their substantive post. Line Managers will submit a written application to their
Operational Manager and Assistant Director AD (as relevant) Lead/Director detailing the
exceptional effort/ merit payment. The Lead/ Director will for objective and consistent
consideration. consult with Human Resources before final agreement.
Exceptional Effort
•
•

•

Exceptional Effort must be reported to AD Team the Lead/Director who will consult
with Human Resources before final agreement.
Payment will be based on 50% of the average value of an increment; e.g. SCP 660
minus SCP61 divided by 610. This figure will be paid on a pro rata basis to part time
employees. The monthly amount will be published and updated on Sharepoint
annually.
Payment should be made on a monthly basis or retrospectively payable per complete
month of recognised exceptional effort, for a maximum of 12 months.

Merit
•
•

•

Exceptional merit must be reported to AD Team the Lead/Director who will consult with
Human Resources.
Payment will be based on 50% of the average value of an increment; e.g. SCP 660
minus SCP61 divided by 610. This figure will be paid on a pro rata basis to part time
employees. The monthly amount will be published and updated on Sharepoint
annually.
Payment should be made as a one off lump sum.

Page 38

Appendix 3

PURCHASE OF ADDITIONAL LEAVE
Version 1.1
Last reviewed
To be reviewed by
Specific changes

13/05/2021
13/05/2022
Amendments made to service areas titles
and changes to the internal
communication process between
employee, line manager and payroll

1 of 4

Page 39

HR Policies and Procedures
Purchase A/L Policy

Appendix 3

PURCHASE ADDITIONAL ANNUAL LEAVE
1.0

INTRODUCTION
The Council operates a Policy of granting all employees paid annual leave entitlement each year,
however it is recognised that some employees may wish to take more than the normal
contractual entitlement of leave. For this reason the Council operates a Policy which enables an
employee to request to 'purchase’ additional annual leave, subject to certain conditions, with the
cost of any approved additional leave being deducted from their salary on a monthly basis over
the course of the leave year.
Benefits of adopting this Policy may be the contribution of achieving Council cost savings,
reduction in absence levels and an improvement in levels of morale and motivation, whilst
enabling Council employees to better meet their personal commitments.

2.0

SCOPE OF THE POLICY
This Policy applies to all employees of South Lakeland District Council, who have satisfactorily
completed their probationary period.

3.0

PRINCIPLES
For the majority of staff the Council’s annual ‘leave year’ runs from January to December.
The maximum amount of additional annual leave that any employee may 'purchase' in any oneleave year is 10 working days (pro rata for part-time staff).
An employee who wishes to purchase additional annual leave must make a request in writing to
their line manager. Separate requests must be made for each leave year and can only be made
for the current or next leave year periods.
The Council reserves the right to refuse an employee's application to purchase additional annual
leave. It may be necessary to refuse an employee's request for operational or technical reasons
related to their job. If approval is not given, managers must give reasons and explore other
options.
Additional annual leave should be taken in the normal way and taken prior to an employee’s
contractual annual leave entitlement.
If, having purchased additional annual leave, the employee fails to take it before the end of the
relevant leave year, the leave will be lost. However in exceptional circumstances where agreed,
if an employee is unable to utilise their purchased annual leave a compensatory payment or
salary adjustment will be made. Alternatively the purchased annual leave may be authorised to
carry into their next leave year.
Where a request has been received and approved, the employee will be notified
appropriate change to their pay by payroll.

of the

The cost of the purchased leave will be spread out over the remaining months within the leave
year. Amounts deducted from salary will be recalculated if the employee’s salary increases or
decreases.
HR Policies and Procedures
2 of 4

Page 40

Purchase A/L Policy

Appendix 3
Employees leaving the Council will be reimbursed if the salary deductions on leaving amount to
more than the leave taken. Payments will be recovered prior to leaving if the value of the salary
deductions are less than the value of the leave taken.
4.0

PROCEDURE

4.1

Employees who wish to submit a request to purchase additional annual leave must do so by
submitting the appropriate form (Appendix A) to their line manager.

4.2

Once the request has been received, the employee’s manager will consider the request and
confirm to the employee their decision, within 10 days of the request being received. If approved
a copy of the request to purchase additional leave form should be signed and sent to HR and
payroll.

4.3

If approval has been given payroll will calculate the likely deductions in salary.

4.4

Should a request be declined the reasons for this should be discussed with the employee and
alternative options considered. These reasons for refusal should be confirmed in writing. Should
an employee feel aggrieved that their request has not been approved they can seek redress
through the Council’s Grievance procedure.

4.5

Manager’s Responsibilities





Managers must consider the resource implications of granting requests to purchase
additional annual leave.
Managers must treat all applications equally.
Managers refusing applications to purchase annual leave should discuss reasons for
refusal and confirm these in writing within 10 working days of the request.
Managers should monitor all purchased annual leave and ensure that it is not carried over
into the next leave year period.

5.0

ADJUSTMENTS TO PAY

5.1

Where an employee requests to purchase additional annual leave, this will result in a reduction to
their monthly salary either for the whole leave year (when the request was processed before the
end of the previous leave year) or for part of the leave year.

5.2

The new monthly salary will be calculated and notified to the employee, by payroll, as soon as
possible following their receipt of the approved request from the employee’s line manager.

5.3

An employee should note that by completing and submitting the request for additional leave form
that, if approved, this form also constitutes their consent to any applicable salary adjustment.

5.4

The calculation will be arrived at by:
 dividing the employee's basic annual salary (excluding non contractual overtime) by
52.143 to determine their notional weekly pay;
 divide this figure by the number of working days in the week;
 multiplying this figure by the number of annual leave days the employee wishes to buy;
 dividing this figure by the remaining number of months in the leave year to arrive at the
amount that will be deducted from the employee's monthly salary;
 subtracting that figure from the employee's normal monthly salary; and
 applying the new level of monthly pay from the agreed date through to the end of that
leave year.
HR Policies and Procedures
3 of 4

Page 41

Purchase A/L Policy

Appendix 3
5.3

For example, if an employee's basic monthly pay, excluding non contractual overtime, is £1,500
and they apply before the start of the leave year to purchase 10 working days additional annual
leave, the calculation will be arrived at by:
 calculating the employee's basic annual salary, which in this case is £18,000;
 divide this figure by 52.143, resulting in a notional weekly payment of £345.20;
 divide this figure by the number of working days in the week: i.e. in this case 5 giving a
sum of £69.04;
 multiply £69.04 by 10, since the employee wishes to buy 10 working days additional
annual leave, giving a sum of £690.40;
 divide this figure by 12 to arrive at the amount that will be deducted from the employee's
monthly salary, producing a figure of £ 57.53; and
 subtract £57.53 from the employee's 'normal' monthly salary, i.e. £1,500 - £57.53, which
gives a new monthly salary for the year of £1,442.47.

5.4

If, using the above example, the employee had applied to purchase the 10 working days
additional annual leave, three months into the leave year, this would mean that there would be
only nine months of the leave year left, over which to average the reduction in pay. In this case,
the calculation would be arrived at by:
 divide the employee's annual salary of £18,000 by 52.143, resulting in a notional weekly
payment of £345.20
 divide the figure by the number of working days in the week: i.e. in this case 5 giving a
sum of £69.04
 multiply £69.04 by 10, since the employee wishes to buy 10 working days additional
annual leave, giving a sum of £690.40;
 divide this figure by 9 to arrive at the amount that will be deducted from the employee's
monthly salary, producing a figure of £76.71; and
 subtract £76.71 from the employee's 'normal' monthly salary, i.e. £1,500 - £76.71, which
gives a new monthly salary for the remaining nine months of the year of £1,423.29

6.0

EFFECT ON PENSION

6.1

By purchasing additional annual leave, in accordance with Regulation 17 of the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 1997 the employee and the employer are required to
pay contributions on the notional full pay for the annual leave days purchased.

7.0

REVIEW
The Policy will be reviewed on a regular basis in the light of operating experience and/or changes
in legislation.

APPENDICES TO THIS DOCUMENT
Appendix A

Request to Purchase Additional Annual Leave Form

4 of 4

Page 42

HR Policies and Procedures
Purchase A/L Policy

Appendix 4

ALCOHOL AND SUBSTANCE MISUSE POLICY

Version 1.1
Last reviewed

9/6/21

To be reviewed by

June 2023 TBA

Specific changes

New Policy introduced
future review is planned to consider
random and compulsory testing

1

Page 43

Appendix 4

ALCOHOL AND SUBSTANCE MISUSE POLICY
1.0

INTRODUCTION
South Lakeland District Council is committed to ensuring the health, safety and
wellbeing of its employees and those affected by its activities.
The Council recognises that issues relating to alcohol or substance misuse do
not, typically, happen quickly. Personal trauma, circumstances or events may
lead an individual to form a relationship with alcohol or substances which is
difficult to break. This policy is designed to help protect workers from the
dangers of alcohol and substance misuse and to encourage those misusing
alcohol and / or substances to seek help.
The Council will take all reasonable steps to reduce, and wherever possible
eliminate, the risk of injuries or incidents occurring due to individuals affected
by alcohol or substance misuse.

2.0

SCOPE OF THE POLICY
This Policy applies to all permanent and temporary employees of South
Lakeland District Council, whether employed on a full time or part time basis.

3.0

AIM
The aim of this policy is to:


Provide employees and managers with information on the effects of
alcohol and substances and an understanding of the likely symptoms of
misuse.



Highlight to employees the risks associated with alcohol and substance
misuse and to promote a positive attitude towards the responsible use
of alcohol and prescribed drugs.



Encourage employees to seek help at an early stage in order to improve
the chances of a successful change in behaviour



Encourage employees and managers to intervene at an early stage
should there be any concerns about an employee’s potential addiction
to alcohol or substances.



Support to employees with an addiction through any treatment plans.

2

Page 44

Appendix 4
4.0

PRINCIPLES
This Policy embodies the following principles:


The Council cannot condone illegal acts and therefore anyone found
possessing, trafficking, taking or selling substances or alcohol on Council
premises or whilst undertaking Council business may be subject to
disciplinary action, and the Police may be informed.



All employees must ensure they are not under the influence of alcohol or
drugs/ substances during working hours and in other situations when
engaged on behalf of the Council.



All employees must ensure that any prescribed drugs or over the counter
medications could not impact their ability to perform their role. Therefore,
they should make enquiries about the side effects of the medication and
discuss these with their manager.



The Council wishes to support employees who are showing signs of alcohol
and substance misuse through access to confidential counselling,
occupational health, signposting to other agencies (Appendix A) and
offering support around managing and coping with change.



The Council recognises that when employees are first identified as suffering
from alcohol and substance misuse supportive measures will be followed.
If, following support the employee’s condition does not improve it may be
necessary to proceed using the Capability Policy, Sickness Absence
Management Policy and / or the Disciplinary Policy.



The term “misuse” may take the form of occasional, regular or continued
use of alcohol or substances, which may temporarily impair judgement,
behaviour or work performance.



There will be times when it is suspected an employee or the employee
confides that they are misusing alcohol and / or substances following issues
of conduct or performance being raised, such as attending work and/or
carrying out duties whilst under the influence of alcohol or some other
substance. If the issues are related to alcohol or substance misuse and for
as long as the employee complies with any Occupational Health
recommendations, specialist treatments and support plans, the procedures
that would normally apply, under the Disciplinary Policy, Capability Policy
and / or Sickness Absence Management Policy, may be postponed.



Employees who are abusing alcohol and / or substances are not covered
by the Equality Act 2010 unless the employee is addicted to drugs which
were originally prescribed for medical reasons. In these circumstances the
Council will comply with the provisions of the Equality Act 2010. Further
advice from Human Resources should be sought in this instance.
3

Page 45

Appendix 4

5.0

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
5.1 Employees
Employees have the responsibility to:


Familiarise themselves with the policy and be aware that failure to comply
with recommendations made under this policy could result in them being
subject to the Capability Policy, Disciplinary Policy and / or Sickness
Absence Management Policy. This could ultimately lead to their dismissal
from the Council.



Be aware of their legal duty to ensure the health and safety of themselves
and others whilst at work.



Present themselves for work free of any impairment due to alcohol or
substance misuse.



Seek help if they believe they have an alcohol or substance misuse problem
and inform their manager accordingly.



Seek advice from their doctor or pharmacist where prescribed drugs or
those bought over the counter have clear side effects which may impair their
performance at work, and then inform their manager accordingly.



Raise concerns about fellow employees in total confidence with either their
manager or Human Resources. However, this may result in managers
acting upon this information.

5.2

Managers

Managers have the responsibility to:


Ensure they are familiar with the contents of this policy.



Be aware of the signs / effects of alcohol or substance misuse and to monitor
changes in performance, conduct and attendance.



Raise concerns about any employee they suspect is misusing alcohol or
substance with the employee as soon as possible and offer support.



Sympathetically support any employee who admits to having a problem and
provide them with every opportunity to receive help.



Inform Human Resources as soon as possible so that appropriate advice
and support can be provided.
4

Page 46

Appendix 4



Refer the employee to Occupational Health for advice and support as soon
as possible.



To undertake a risk assessment to ascertain whether they are able to carry
on out their role, and that control measures are adopted to protect the
employee and others.



Ensure confidentiality is maintained at all times during the process.



Maintain detailed records of the meetings and interventions that take place.



To implement, where applicable, the Disciplinary Policy, Sickness Absence
Policy or Capability Policy when an employee admits to having an alcohol
or substance misuse problem or where medical evidence indicates there is
an alcohol and substance misuse problem but the employee refuses help.

5.3

Human Resources

Human Resources will be responsible for:

6.0



Supporting managers who suspect one of their employees has a
substances and/or alcohol problem or an employee has admitted to
having an alcohol and or substance problem.



Supporting the referral to Occupational Health and ensuring any
recommendations are implemented.

ALCOHOL OR SUBSTANCE MISUSE
The health, attendance, conduct and / or performance of an employee who is
showing signs of alcohol and / or substance misuse is likely to be negatively
impacted.
Below are some of the signs and symptoms that can indicate someone is either
currently under the influence of alcohol and / or substances or may be misusing
alcohol or substances.
Signs of current intoxication:










Unsteadiness
Smell of alcohol / solvents
Aggression
Incoherence
Slurred speech
Blood-shot eyes
Appearing to be detached from reality
Making inappropriate comments
Giggling / Giddiness
5

Page 47

Appendix 4





Drowsiness
Inappropriate giggling
Flushed Cheeks
Other uncharacteristic behaviour

Signs of a possible long-term problem:















Poor attendance
Late to work / returning from lunch
Many self-certified absences
Poor performance – quality & quantity
Accidents e.g. slips, trips & falls
Deterioration in appearance
Depression
Anxiety
Low concentration
Mood swings
Aggressive – picks arguments
Concern expressed by colleagues
Regular Headaches
Weight Loss

However, it should be noted that these characteristics are not confined to
alcohol and substance misuse so caution should be exercised in the
interpretation. If you have any doubts or need further advice please contact
Human Resources.

7.0

SELF-REFERRAL
The Council encourages any employee misusing alcohol and / or substances
to come forward and seek help. Early identification and treatment is essential
to avoid problems for the employee and Council at a later date. Any employee
who does come forward with a problem will be treated with sensitivity and
dignity and will have the opportunity to seek help from Occupational Health.
All information relating to the individual’s medical condition will be kept
confidential and all absences for treatment and rehabilitation will be regarded
as normal sickness and dealt with within the scope of the Sickness Absence
Management Policy.
Any employee who wishes to self-report that they believe that they have an
alcohol and / or substance misuse problem should speak to their line manager.
The following steps will be taken:
 Contact Human Resources for advice and support.
6

Page 48

Appendix 4
 Referral to Occupational Health for advice and support.
 Signposting to other agencies (appendix A).
 A risk assessment to be completed immediately to review working activities,
put in place control measures and remove the employee from any safety
critical operations.
 On-going weekly meetings with their line manager to offer support and any
appropriate actions including supporting managing change or difficult
situations.
The employee must commit to any support plan recommended by Occupational
Health. Failure to do so may result in disciplinary or capability proceedings
being implemented.
If an employee is already within the Capability Procedure, Sickness Absence
Management Policy or Disciplinary Policy and the manager believes that
alcohol/substance misuse has contributed towards the poor performance or
conduct issues then the formal procedures may be postponed. However, the
formal procedures will be recommenced if the support that has been put in place
has not resulted in any improvement.

8.0

MANAGEMENT REFERRAL
A manager who has any concerns about an employee who might have an
alcohol or substance misuse problem should arrange to discuss this with the
employee at the earliest opportunity. The purpose of the discussion is to:
 Inform the employee of their concerns which may include an identified
deteriorating pattern in work performance or conduct
 Ask the employee for their view on the problems, their nature and the
reasons behind them
 Explain the consequences of continued lowered work performance or
conduct
 Remind the employee of this policy and the support that is available to them.
If an employee accepts that they do have a problem (or if following the
discussion the manager still has concerns), the employee should be referred to
Occupational Health.

7

Page 49

Appendix 4
If the employee does not accept they have a problem, any concerns about their
performance or conduct should be dealt with through either the Sickness
Absence Management Policy, Capability Policy or the Disciplinary Policy.
Human Resource will be able to provide further advice.
If an employee presents themselves for work and their manager suspects that
they are under the influence of substances and / or alcohol to the extent that
they are a hazard to themselves and others and / or their work is impaired, the
manager should suspend the employee having first arranged a time and place
to meet with them the following morning, or as soon as is reasonably possible.
Although a Human Resources representative would not normally attend these
meetings, the manager may contact Human Resources for advice. If the
manager suspects that the employee is likely to attempt to drive their vehicle
and believes they are not in a fit state to do so, the manager may order the
employee a taxi (the taxi will be paid for by the employee). However, it must be
stressed that the responsibility is on the employee (and not the manager) to
get themselves home in a safe and legal manner.

9.0

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND REHABILITATION
Occupational Health will offer help, advice and support for any employee who
is suffering from alcohol or substance misuse. They will also make the
employee aware of further sources of help outside work.
To assist with the employee’s rehabilitation, the employee may be given, with
careful consideration and agreement from their manager, the following options:


remaining in work



taking sick leave, if medical opinion i.e. Occupational Health supports this



having their hours of work, or type of work temporarily changed

These options will be considered within the scope of what is considered to be
reasonable to the Council and the employee.
Occupational Health will continue to support the employee until their health has
improved and they are fit to return to their normal work. Any employee who
refuses to accept help or who discontinues an approved course of treatment
without good cause may be subject to disciplinary action.

10.0

REVIEW
This Policy will be reviewed on a regular basis in the light of operating
experience and/or changes in legislation.

8

Page 50

Appendix 4
Appendix A
Sources of Help and Advice
Addaction

www.addaction.org.uk

Al-Alon
Family Groups

www.al-anonuk.org.uk
020 7403 0888

Alcohol concern

www.alcoholconcern.org.uk

Alcoholics Anonymous (AA)

Tel: 0800 9177 650
www.alcoholics-anonymous.co.uk

CADAS Kendal

Stricklandgate House
92 Stricklandgate
Kendal
Cumbria
LA9 4PU

CRI Inspire Lancaster

Tel: 01539 742615
24 Great Johns Street
Lancaster
Lancashire
LA1 1NG
Tel: 08458 941 745
This is a premium number which will be charged at a higher rate.
The service provider has not yet provided details about the service
charge

Drugscope

32-36 Loman Street
London
SE1 0EE
Tel: 020 7928 1211
www.drugscope.org.uk

National Drugs Helpline

Tel: 0800 776600
www.ndh.org.uk

National Alcohol Helpline

Tel: 0300 123 1110

NHS Website

www.nhs.uk/livewell

Occupational Health via referral
from Human Resources

Choose Occupational Health
Suite 3
Telford House
Riverside
Warwick Road
Carlisle CA1 2BT
Tel: 01228 513687
Email: office@chooseOH.co.uk

9

Page 51

Appendix 4
Unity drug and Alcohol Recovery
Service (Monday, Wednesday and
Friday)

39 Stricklandgate
Kendal
Cumbria
LA9 4LT
Tel: 01539 742 780

10

Page 52

Item No.9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 53

This page is intentionally left blank

Item No.10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 57

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 61

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6a, 6b, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 67

Item No.11

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6a, 6b, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 75

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6a, 6b, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 77

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6a, 6b, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 79

This page is intentionally left blank

